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“Articles of Association”
[4B& =240 )

“Audit Committee”
[EZEZEE]

“Board”
X34

“BVI"
[(REBRZEHS]

“Chairman”
[E£% ]

“Company”

VNN

“Corporate Governance
Code”
[ EE<F Al

“Director(s)”
==

“Group”
[R&H |
“Guangjun Holdings”

[ Guangjun Holdings |

“Guangjun Sun Holdings”

[Guangjun Sun Holdings ]

“Hannah Xia Holdings”

[Hannah Xia Holdings ]

DEFINITION
Bx

the articles of association of the Company adopted by special resolutions passed
on 4 April 2023 with effect from the Listing Date
RATR2023F4 AR NS ADAZEBBMRANABERZMAE - B LW AHRER

the audit committee of the Board
EESERLET

the board of Directors of the Company
ARREEE

the British Virgin Islands
RERZRHES

the chairman of the Board
EE-E

Plus Group Holdings Inc. (Z#Ei&EIERBMRAR]), an exempted company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 30
September 2021, the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2486)

TLAEEIZERAER AR - —KMN202149 A30B R 15 F £ 5 & A O 3E it B <2 69 %
BEBMRAF - EROREERZAMER LT (RO - 2486)

Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules
TR A ERC1ETE By (b X E R <F Bl

the director(s) of the Company
RARESE

the Company and its subsidiaries
RAE REWEB AR

Guangjun Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability
on 13 September 2021 and owned by Summit Plus and Junshu Holdings as to 99%
and 1%, respectively

Guangjun Holdings Limited * —RMR2021F9 R 13 AR BE X HSHMA LN ER
AR o Bl ESummit Plus & Junshu Holdings #k 5 99% & 1% % #E

Guangjun Sun Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability on 13 September 2021 and wholly-owned by Junshu Holdings

Guangjun Sun Holdings Limited » —RA2021F9A13EERBELBHEEMA T
ABR AR BJunshu Holdingsz2 &% A

Hannah Xia Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability on 13 September 2021 and owned by Jonson Xia Smile Holdings and
Jonson Xia Holdings as to 99% and 1%, respectively

Hannah Xia Holdings Limited * —5RA20215F9 A 13 £ R EBRE L HEEMA LA
A7) 9 5@ Jonson Xia Smile Holdings & Jonson Xia Holdings # & 99% K. 1% %

ERMEEIZRERAET —B-RFPHEE
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Definition

B=

“HKS"
[E7T]

"HKFRS"
(BB R E 2R

"Hong Kong"
(&8

“Jonson Xia Holdings”

[Jonson Xia Holdings |

“Jonson Xia Smile Holdings”

[Jonson Xia Smile Holdings ]

"Junshu Holdings”

[Junshu Holdings |

"Kuwei Holdings”

[Kuwei Holdings |
“Latest Practicable Date”
[ & F{TEHH]

“Listing Date”

[ AH
“Listing Rules”
[ =8 Al

“Main Board”

(1R

“Model Code”

6 PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BAEEEEET

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which include standards and
interpretations as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
EAUBHREER  BREEESHMASHRMNERLRE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEFEBRRITHE

Jonson Xia Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability
on 3 September 2021 and wholly-owned by Mr. Xia Jingtang

Jonson Xia Holdings Limited * —FRMA2021F9 A3 ERBE XHETMA I NAER
NEl - BERREETERA

Jonson Xia Smile Family Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI on 31
March 2023 and wholly-owned by Mr. Xia's Family Trust

Jonson Xia Smile Family Holdings Limited © —Z&K 3120234331 B EBE LA S
M AR - AEERERKELELREHRA

Junshu Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability on
3 September 2021 and wholly-owned by Mr. Sun Guangjun

Junshu Holdings Limited » —RMR2021F9AHE LB R L HEEIMEIHER A
Al BEBREXAEZEHE

Kuwei Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability on
3 September 2021
Kuwei Holdings Limited + —=K 1202169 H3H A RER XA ETMA AR A A
12 September 2025, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this
interim report for the purpose of ascertaining certain information contained herein
20259 A128 - Bl EARENENRT R E E RIS E TER O RZAI1THH

11 May 2023, being the date on which the Shares are first listed and from which
dealings thereof are permitted to commence on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange

2023%5A11MB - IR BEREMBE - BUARRRRGOEEEBIAERETE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended
from time to time
BT H LA - RS ET

the stock exchange (excluding the options market) operated by the Stock Exchange
which is independent from and operating in parallel with GEM of the Stock
Exchange

BB R FTEENRER S (T EEETS) - B R AZFTGEMIL B2 K 0 1738 1
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules

LR R SRCIFME M EMBETAESTETESF R S HIFETA

Interim Report 2025



Definition

B=

“Mr. Sun’s Family Trust” a discretionary family trust established by Mr. Sun Guangjun as settlor for the

[ K &7

“Mr. Xia's Family Trust”

[E A K KEEE
“020"
[020]

"Plus Shanghai”

[E 40D L]

il

“PRC" or “China”

[ B

"Prospectus”
[k EE]

"

"Reporting Period
[ A

“RMB”
AR

“RSU(s)"
[ 28R I B% 15 B AL

“RSU Scheme”

[ 52 BR il A7 B 5t &

"Saas"
[Saas ]
“SEQ"

[ 78 % & & 1561 ]

benefit of Mr. Sun Guangjun and Junshu Holdings, of which Trident Trust is a
trustee

HREELREEAZ T AURES &4 Klunshu Holdings &% 3 AR B 2R K
B EBEHRERERATTEA

a discretionary family trust established by Mr. Xia lJingtang as settlor for the benefit
of Mr. Xia Jingtang and Jonson Xia Holdings, of which Trident Trust is a trustee
ESEELEATIEANESERE Rlonson Xia Holdings A< AR H2ER
BIERE  EREREFLEAZITA

online to offline
R ERIRT

Plus (Shanghai) Digital Technologies Co., Ltd.* (L%4kh ( -38) iR AR AT,
formerly known as Shanghai Mecool Marketing Co., Ltd.* (/8RBT I5 4 ARG A
[ A &]) and Plus (Shanghai) Digital Technologies Co., Ltd. (£ £4H0 ( &) SR
AR AR, a limited company established under the laws of the PRC on 6
August 2004 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

T2 (/) FRIARAR - A LA MISEEREER AT KT L (£
) BFERIERMERAT  —KR2004F8A6AREBEPBE AKX INER AR K
ARREEEZENEBE QR

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this interim report and
unless otherwise indicated, excludes Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC and Taiwan

REARLME  BARAPEHREMS ARIESEHE  TRESE - REIRPIE
AT R R & &

the prospectus of the Company dated 28 April 2023
ARAFHEA2023F4 A28 AN BIRERE

six months ended 30 June 2025
B 22025F6A30H 1F/~1E A

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
FENEEE®EARE

restricted share unit(s) awarded to a participant under the RSU Scheme
RIE RS IR M B AT B TR EEMNZ R BIARMD B

the restricted share unit scheme of the Company adopted on 13 January 2022
RRAR2022F1 B 13B HMHYZ R HIf% fh BLLEFE]

software as a service, a cloud-based software licensing and delivery model in
which software and associated data are centrally hosted
AR - B RAEREBRERTEEN —EEm BT R ERER

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as

amended from time to time
BEEDIESINEF S LBEED - EEHERT

ERMEEIZRERAET —B-RFPHEE



Definition

B=

“Share Award Scheme”

[ %7 22 B 5T &)
“Share(s)”
%15 |

“Shareholder(s)”
[ % 2

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 Fr |

“Summit Plus”

[ Summit Plus
“treasury shares”
[ETF AR ]
“Trident Trust”
REESEEA

"Us$”
B

“0/ "
(¢]

[%]

* For [dentification purpose only

* EREF
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the share award scheme of the Company adopted on 26 June 2023
KRR R2023F 6 526 B MEI A% 1D SZE) 7+ &)

ordinary share(s) of par value of US$0.0002 each in the issued share capital of the
Company
RATE B ETRAP G REEO0.00023E 7T A

holder(s) of the Share(s) from time to time
RN ST RSN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BABERSMEBR AR

Summit Plus International Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI on 10
March 2023 and wholly-owned by Mr. Sun’s Family Trust

summit Plus International Holding Limited » —RM2023F3 A0 EHBR L EE
AMAYBN AR BREERKETEZERSR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB EmBRANE T ZARE

Trident Trust Company (HK) Limited, the trustee of Mr. Sun’s Family Trust and Mr.
Xia's Family Trust
BREFX(BEB)ERAR]  BEERREARELEREELINZTTA

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
ENBERENEEEBET

per cent
Epzid

Interim Report 2025



FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS
MBNEREERE

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

MBHE

Six months ended 30 June

BZE6A30B LL<EA
Period-on-Period
2025 2024 change
2025 20244 REIE B
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETTT %
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REGES) (REEEET)
Revenue W = 1,631,270 342,597 376.1%
Gross profit E7 82,085 48,856 68.0%
Profit (Loss) for the period BRAE A (B 8) 7,984 (3,767) 311.9%
Profit (Loss) and total KRAREEB A
comprehensive income FE 18 BR A g A
(expense) for the period (B8 k2w
attributable to owners of e (M) 4858
the Company 6,317 (3,493) 280.8%
SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIO BEMKLLR
As of or As of or
for the for the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
HZE20255F HZE2024F
6H30H 12H31H
REEZH HEEZHA
1IEX1E A LE}ME A
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(#BE49) (H4Y)
Revenue growth’ Wi K 376.1% 44.1%
Current ratio (times)? MBI & (f5)2 2.5 2.5
Gearing ratio® BAEAEL X N/A (net cash) N/A (net cash)
TE A NEA
(R&FH) (BReF88)
Notes. /Zﬁnéi‘c .
1. Revenue growth ratio equals revenue growth divided by revenue for the 1. 2318 R R E R IE R B AR T BRI 8 K
prior period. = o

2. Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by 2.

the total current liabilities as of the end of the period/year end.

Calculated by using the net debt divided by total equity as of period/
year end. Net debt is calculated as total bank borrowings, amount due
to a non-controlling shareholder and lease liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents.

MBLEREZRR FRARDEELER
AmB B ERRERHE

BT ER AR E SR F RS
Ho BREERBITIEREE WA B
BERRERERAERERRL RN LS
BEE -

ERMEEZRERAE —ToRFHHBE 9



Financial Summary and Operation Highlights

MBEBEREERE
As of As of
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
HZE20255F B ZE20244F
6H30H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEE) (#e 2 5t)
Total equity e 490,716 479,665
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEESED 149,180 159,647
Bank borrowings IRITIER 77,948 64,148
Amount due to non-controlling shareholders FE A 0 B AR % R SRIE 10,535 33,953
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,323 3,570
OPERATING METRICS EEERF
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6H30B1LXEA
Period-on-Period
2025 2024 change
2025 F 20244 big - ip=
%
Number of paying customers NEREFH#E 1,064 232 358.6%

Total number of points of sale on Z &34 E 2488 (H1 1)
a cumulative basis (Note) 4,452,000 4,430,000 0.5%

Total number of touchpoints on 2 &8 2h B & (47:F)

a cumulative basis (Note) 734,000 553,000 32.7%
Average monthly active g RERER (i)

touchpoints (Note) 64,000 31,000 106.5%
Note: The number showing above is rounded to nearest thousand. Biet : EXREITFE R AAZREINTAE -

10  PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Interim Report 2025



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2025, under the impacts of lingering international tensions, the
global supply chain system experienced accelerated fragmentation
and restructuring. Escalating trade barriers among major economies
significantly slowed down the global economic recovery process.

Against this background, the global consumer market continued to
show a sustained downward trend, with the risk of stagflation,
characterised by "high inflation coupled with low growth”, becoming
increasingly pronounced. While innovative applications, particularly in
artificial intelligence (Al) technology, continued to gain momentum,
and the rapid transformation and expansion of the new energy
industry injected new growth drivers into the economy, the overall
downward pressure on the economy remained unresolved.

Through forward-looking strategies, the Group leveraged continuous
research, development and in-depth application of Al to strengthen
its core competitiveness and build barriers for its businesses and
services. By steadfastly implementing a strategy prioritizing market
share capture, it successfully achieved remarkable breakthroughs
despite the adverse market downturn. This not only effectively
withstood intensifying competitive pressures within the industry but
also created significant growth highlights, expanding its current
operational space while laying a solid foundation for future
development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group finally achieved a total
revenue of approximately RMB1.6313 billion, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately RMB1.2887 billion or 376.1%
as compared to the same period of last year.

The Group's principal businesses include:

Customised marketing solution

The focus of our service of the customised marketing solution is to
develop and implement customised sales and marketing plans for
customers with a view to raising awareness for customers’ brand
and promoting the merchandise and its sales.

By maintaining close cooperation with retailers and continuously
deepening its involvement in the 020 real-time retailing, the Group
pursued a dual-pronged development strategy. Its exceptional
Al-powered capabilities and application services in the digital
marketing field not only effectively solidified its existing market share
but also successfully unlocked new channels and application
scenarios, injecting multifaceted vitality into its sustained business
growth.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s customised marketing
solution business achieved a revenue of approximately RMB371.7
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
40.4%.

BEEE WD

% o B

2025 EEIEREREHENTET 2
REEEBERMECEER  TEKER
ZHEZEETEHAHR EHEREBEER
ERABITEE -

ERBERT 2RHBEMSEEZRTER
MRS [HiEKEEERILF ]I ER
HaMfE - ANATERANVRTANREKE
BIFERBERS  MEREXNREER
EFERSKEBEIAFNIERIE BEREL
BTITEAMARGIRAMER -

AEBERBAEMENME - KFEABERNEFE
MBERREER - TSRS ROBEFEN
BEXBERGER S HERTRTELEBIE
MISMBEBEIEST  KIRAFOTEHE T
TERTERSL R TMEEREETIT
EABRGAENGFEN  ERAETRE
MRS TMERRTE TNEFZER 7F
RAKREREETRERE -

RBEHA AEESKERBEANAR
16313 T WAMBERERHDARE

12.8871E7T * RLIE KA R376.1% °

AEEEEXRBGF

EREHBRE R
ERHEHEBERTRUREPHIELE M EH
HEMLHABBRBZL  EHEESEP
MmERMAE  EEmm MBI -

AEEBARFETEREANETAE
K 020 BN T E R A T EDR B - B E
ENERRR  WEEEHFLLHHEREAR
BEMNAIGEEERERRMEN  TEEX
BEETRANTIZNE  ERDFARTHH
RE FHEMASS  REBHEBLERIAT
ZEET -

RBEMA - AEBTEREEERTRER
REBRPAHDAREI7I7ET  RLER
#940.4% °

ERMEBIZRERAT —B-RFPHEHSE 1]



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWED T

Tasks and marketers matching service

The focus of the tasks and marketers matching service is to
formulate and implement standardised sales and comprehensive
service for customers with a view to enhancing customers’ sales
performance and operational efficiency.

Building on continuous research and development and application
penetration in Al, the Group established formidable business
barriers. 1ts bold initiatives garnered recognition from brand
customers, channel clients and other parties, driving rapid expansion
of its application business based on an Al intelligent matching
mechanism.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s tasks and marketers
matching service business achieved a revenue of approximately
RMB1.2204 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 2,067.7%.

SaaS+ subscription and other services

SaaS+ subscription and other services focus on providing customers
with customisation (on an as-needed basis) and subscription for
digitalised tools as well as relevant derivative services to enhance
and streamline their sales and marketing works.

As the Group's digital, systematic and intelligent platforms and
services became increasingly sophisticated and mature, it was able
to provide more flexible and versatile comprehensive services in
addition to customised services, thereby continuously injecting new
momentum into the growth of such businesses.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s SaaS+ subscription and
other services business achieved a revenue of approximately
RMB27.6 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 187.5%.

Marketers assignment service

Our marketers assignment service is aimed at top brand customers
to enable them to experience the digital sales and marketing
advantages with a view to helping us further expand our market and
lay a solid foundation for increasing our market share.

Affected by the overall environment of the offline retail market,
brand customers consistently reduced investments, leading to a
continuous decline in the Group’s revenue from such business.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s marketers assignment
service business achieved a revenue of approximately RMB11.5
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 4.2%.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

1.

We are fully committed to maintaining our core advantage in
Al-powered intelligent matching. While maintaining and
deepening relationships with existing tasks matching
customers, we will actively explore new channels, new sectors
and new markets to capture a larger market share in matching
services, continuously fortifying the Group's presence and
sustainable development in the future.

We will maintain close cooperation with various major channel
partners and enhance the digital intermodal mechanism to
achieve comprehensive data sharing and highly synergistic
growth. While anchoring at the forefront of the retail market,
we will utilise self-developed intelligent systems and tools such
as sales point management to continuously accumulate diverse
consumer and retail data assets. We will also leverage
intelligent data models and Al analysis capabilities to stay
attuned to market dynamics and precisely track evolving
consumer behavior and demand trends.

Leveraging capital advantages and relying on Hong Kong's
geographical and policy advantages as a free port, we will
focus on overseas market expansion and embark on
cross-border trade initiatives. By virtue of our own
accumulated omnichannel retail and terminal channel
resources, we will integrate and connect the entire supply
chain with the ultimate goal of brand product sales. This will
finally build an integrated service system that combines import
and export, supply chain, marketing and promotion, channel
distribution and omnichannel retail, thereby establishing a new
strategic growth pillar.

We will deepen the development in 020 real-time retailing.
While expanding business operations to capture market share,
we will actively explore innovative integration with terminal
retail scenarios. Coupled with the flexible traffic diversion and
customer acquisition advantages under the 020 model, and
the Group’'s robust sales data assets, we will effectively
monetise data assets and assist brands and channels in
achieving sales breakthroughs at offline terminals through
precise marketing and intelligent distribution strategies,
fostering a synergistic online-offline new retail ecosystem.

We will continue to increase investment in Al technology
research and development, and advance intelligent innovation
and application iteration. Through Al-driven data insights, we
will empower end-to-end business upgrades, delivering smarter
and more efficient service solutions to fuel the Group's
long-term growth with intellectual momentum.

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWED T

EBRE

1.

ENRBABREEZLES  ElR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The total revenue of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2025 amounted to approximately RMB1.6313 billion, representing an
increase of approximately 376.1% as compared to the same period
in 2024. Building on the strong growth momentum that began in the
second half of 2024, it once again achieved significant revenue
growth.

The revenue breakdown of the four business segments is as follows:

WA

Bt % 5] B8

REBEBWABZE2025F6 30 IEXBEAE
BBAHDARKE16313ETT
R #9376.1% ° B Z2024F T+ FRLH R
YiEREY  BEERRANBEZREER -

#2024 5 [ HA3E

PO R h SR U A BRARZA T ¢

Six months ended 30 June

BZ6A30RLKEA
2025 2024
2025F 20244
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHE) (REEFEET)
Revenue from: REUTEBRBAWA :

Customised marketing solution TE ] & S R R T B 371,744 264,776
Tasks and marketers matching service — (5B & A BT RS 1,220,423 56,296
Marketers assignment service ZIHA BIREL AR TS 11,492 11,960
SaaS+ subscription and other services SaaS+&] 3 & H th AR 7% 27,611 9,565
1,631,270 342,597

1. Customised marketing solution 1. TEHEHEBRAR
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Revenue from the business segment of customised marketing
solution amounted to approximately RMB371.7 million for the
six months ended 30 June 2025, representing an increase of
approximately RMB106.9 million or approximately 40.4% as
compared to the same period in 2024.

Leveraging continuous efforts in the 020 real-time retailing
and deep cooperation with retailers, we provided the existing
customers with excellent services, while continuously
expanding into new service areas with our strengths in
intelligent, digital and Al applications. This enabled us to
capture more market share, ensuring the sustained growth
momentum of such business.
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Tasks and marketers matching service

Revenue from the business segment of tasks and marketers
matching service amounted to approximately RMB1,220.4
million for the six months ended 30 June 2025, representing an
increase of approximately RMB1,164.1 million or approximately
2,067.7% as compared to the same period in 2024.

With the launch of the new matching business platform, the
tasks and marketers matching service business grew rapidly.
Since its official launch in November 2024, the tasks and
marketers matching service acquired and served a total of
over 940 customers as of 30 June 2025, with an average
revenue per customer of approximately RMB1.3 million.

Marketers assignment service

Revenue from the business segment of marketers assignment
service amounted to approximately RMB11.5 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2025, representing a decrease of
approximately RMBO.5 million or 4.2% as compared to the
same period in 2024.

Due to the impact of market conditions, the Group continued
to reduce the number of service personnel assigned to
customers’ designated end retailers, which affected the
revenue of such business.

SaaS+ subscription and other services

Revenue from the business segment of SaaS+ subscription and
other services amounted to approximately RMB27.6 million for
the six months ended 30 June 2025, representing an increase
of approximately RMB18.0 million or approximately 187.5% as
compared to the same period in 2024.

This was mainly because systematic and intelligent platforms
became increasingly mature, there was a rapid enhancement
in the capability of its application services, which in turn
expanded the flexibility and suitability of the services, and thus
able to fulfil the diversified requirements from the customers
on the system and comprehensive application services, and in
turn raised the level of revenue.
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Cost, gross profit and gross profit margin

The total cost of the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,549.2
million for the six months ended 30 June 2025, representing an
increase of approximately RMB1,255.5 million or approximately
427.5% as compared to the same period in 2024.

The increase in cost exceeded the increase in revenue mainly
because the Group prioritised capturing market share and ensuring
service quality during its rapid expansion, it appropriately lowered its
profit expectations while the hard costs of services remained
unchanged.

In 2025, the Group achieved a gross profit of approximately RMB82.1
million during the Reporting Period, representing an increase of
approximately RMB33.2 million or 67.9% as compared to the same
period in 2024.

In 2025, the Group achieved a gross profit margin of approximately
5.0% during the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of
approximately 9.3% as compared to 14.3% of the same period in
2024.

This was mainly because, in the business segment of tasks and
marketers matching service, the Group adopted the matching service
platform to quickly grab market share at low prices. Although this
resulted in rapid expansion of the business by dozens of times and
ensured the overall profitability of the Group, it inevitably led to a
significant decrease in gross profit margin.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly include employee salaries and
benefit expenses, office rent and office expenses. Administrative
expenses increased by approximately 3.7% from approximately
RMB43.2 million for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to
approximately RMB44.8 million for the six months ended 30 June
2025, which was mainly due to the growth in tasks and marketers
matching service, with no significant change in overall.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses primarily consist of employee
salaries. Selling and marketing expenses increased by approximately
160.0% from approximately RMB10.5 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2024 to approximately RMB27.3 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2025, primarily due to the growth of the
tasks and marketers matching service business, resulting in the
increase of sales and marketing expenses.
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Research and development costs

Research and development costs primarily consist of labour costs
and other research and development costs. Research and
development costs decreased by approximately 58.0% from
approximately RMB13.1 million for the six months ended 30 June
2024 to approximately RMB5.5 million for the six months ended
30 June 2025, mainly due to the integration of artificial intelligence
applications, which enhanced our own operational capabilities.

Other income

Other income increased by approximately 100% from approximately
RMB5.5 million for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to
approximately RMB11.0 million for the six months ended 30 June
2025, mainly due to the increase in policy subsidies of the
government.

Other (losses) gains — net

Other net gains decreased by approximately 104.9% from
approximately RMB10.3 million for the six months ended 30 June
2024 to the losses of approximately RMB0.5 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2025, mainly due to a significant decrease in
the reversal of refundable amount from social security payments by
the government in relation to the relief of the impact of COVID-19 as
well as lower exchange gains derived from Hong Kong dollars.

Impairment losses on trade receivables, contract assets
and other receivables — net

Impairment of financial assets decreased by approximately 17.2%
from approximately RMB2.9 million for the six months ended
30 June 2024 to approximately RMB2.4 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2025, mainly because the credit management of the
Group’s has been strengthened, and thus the impairment loss was
reduced as a result of the improved quality of trade receivables and
contract assets newly incurred as of 30 June 2025.

Finance (cost) income — net

Net finance income decreased by approximately 280.0% from
RMBO0.5 million for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to the net
finance cost of approximately RMBO0.9 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2025, mainly due to the interest rate cut by the
Central Bank and the decrease in market interest rates, which led to
a decline in asset yields.

Income tax (expense) credit

Income tax increased by approximately 311.1% from income tax
credit of approximately RMBO0.9 million for the six months ended
30 June 2024 to income tax expense of approximately RMB3.7 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2025, primarily due to the
increase in profits from the core business segment, which led to an
increase in taxable income.
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Profit (Loss) attributable to equity owners of the
Company

Profit attributable to equity owners of the Company increased by
approximately 280.0% from a loss of approximately RMB3.5 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to a profit of approximately
RMB6.3 million for the six months ended 30 June 2025.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by approximately 6.5% from
approximately RMB159.6 million as of 31 December 2024 to
approximately RMB149.2 million as of 30 June 2025, mainly due to
the increase in sales revenue without timely recovery of cash, which
led to an increase in trade receivables and a decrease in cash.

Capital expenditure

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, the capital
expenditure were approximately RMBO0.1 million, which were
basically the same for both periods.

Material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

As of 30 June 2025, the Company did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

Plans for material investments or acquisition of capital
assets

As of 30 June 2025, save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed
“Use of Proceeds from the Listing” in this interim report, the
Company had no future plans for material investments or acquisition
of capital assets.

Pledge of assets

As of 30 June 2025, the Company did not have any material pledge
of assets.

Liquidity and capital source

The Group's primary uses of cash are for funding of its working
capital requirements, repayment of loans and related interest
expenses. As of the date of this interim report, the Group has
funded its operations principally with cash generated from
operations, borrowings and net proceeds from the Listing.

In the future, the Group believes that its liquidity requirements will
be satisfied with a combination of cash flows generated from
operating activities, bank loans and other funds raised from the
capital markets from time to time.
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As of 30 June 2025, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB149.2 million. As of 30 June 2025, the balance of
borrowings was approximately RMB77.9 million, all of which are
borrowings due within one year.

The unutilised banking facilities as of 30 June 2025 amounted to
approximately RMB37.0 million. The Group has sufficient liquidity to
satisfy its day-to-day management and capital expenditure
requirements and is able to control its internal operating cash flows.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's major business operations are located in the PRC, and
thus the principal revenue and costs are denominated in RMB, and
certain monetary capitals are denominated in Hong Kong dollar. As a
result, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Group
currently had no foreign currency hedging plan. However, the
management of the Company monitors the foreign exchange
fluctuation risk and considers hedging significant foreign exchange
fluctuation risk when necessary.

Contingent liabilities

As of 30 June 2025, the Group had no material contingent liabilities,
which was the same as that of 31 December 2024.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group’'s employees include its own employees and associates.
Its own employees refer to the employees for the Group’s
operations, including finance and information technology. Associates
refer to those who are assigned to work on client premises. As of
30 June 2025, the Group employed 6,801 employees (31 December
2024: 7,342).

Employee remuneration is determined with reference to similar
market rate and the performance, qualifications and experience of
individual employee. In addition to the basic remuneration, year-end
discretionary bonus will be offered to employees with outstanding
performance to attract and retain eligible employees to contribute to
the Group.

The Company has adopted the RSU Scheme on 13 January 2022 and
the Share Award Scheme on 26 June 2023 to improve the
Company’s incentive mechanism, attract and retain talents and
motivate employees to ensure the achievement of the Company’s
development goals. For details, please refer to the paragraphs
headed “RSU Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” in this interim
report.

In addition, the Group has adopted the employee diversity policy in
July 2025. This policy aims to better fulfill our social responsibilities,
encourage equality and inclusion, eliminate bias and discrimination,
and promote diversity and inclusion.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER INFORMATION
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining sound corporate
governance and had complied with all the code provisions as set out
in Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules (the "Corporate Governance Code") during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this interim report, save for
the deviation as disclosed below.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly established
and set out in writing. Mr. Sun Guangjun is the Chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. He has been primarily involved in
developing overall corporate and business strategies of the Group
and making significant business and operational decisions of the
Group.

The Directors consider that vesting the roles of both the Chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company in Mr. Sun Guangjun
is beneficial to the business prospects of the Group by ensuring
consistent leadership to the Group as well as prompt and effective
decision making and implementation. In addition, the Directors
believe that this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Company,
given that: (i) the decision to be made by the Board requires
approval by at least a majority of the Directors; (i) Mr. Sun Guangjun
and other Directors are aware of and undertake to fulfil their
fiduciary duties as Directors, which require, among other things, that
he acts for the benefit and in the best interests of the Company and
will make decisions for the Company accordingly; (iii) the balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operations of the Board,
which consists of two executive Directors (including Mr. Sun
Guangjun) and three independent non-executive Directors, and has a
fairly strong independence element; and (iv) the overall strategic and
other key business, financial, and operational policies of the
Company are made collectively after thorough discussion at both the
Board, and senior management levels.

The Board shall review the structure from time to time to ensure
that the structure facilitates the execution of the business strategies
of the Group and maximizes effectiveness of its operation.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) under
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the requirements for securities transactions of directors set out
in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURE

As of 30 June 2025, the interests and short positions of each of the
Directors and chief executive in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of the associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which is required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which is required pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which is required pursuant to the Model Code to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Notes:

(1

@2

22

All interest stated are long positions.

The calculation is based on the total number of 120,701,800 Shares in
issue (including treasury shares) as of 30 June 2025. The Company had
4,891,600 treasury shares as of 30 June 2025.

As of 30 June 2025, Guangjun Holdings is held as to 99% by Summit
Plus, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun’s Family Trust, and as
to 1% by Junshu Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun
Guangjun. Mr. Sun’s Family Trust was established by Mr. Sun Guangjun
as the settlor for the benefit of Mr. Sun Guangjun and Junshu Holdings
with Trident Trust as the trustee. Under the SFO, Mr. Sun Guangjun is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Guangjun Holdings.

As of 30 June 2025, Guangjun Sun Holdings is wholly-owned by Junshu
Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun Guangjun. Under
the SFO, Mr. Sun Guangjun is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Guangjun Sun Holdings.

As of 30 June 2025, Mr. Yang Hong is interested in 1,620,240 Shares
which underlines his 18.84% equity interests in Kuwei Holdings.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As of 30 June 2025, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares, which would be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO:

TEERRAEMER

= BRI B RAABRE K
&/&F‘

B ZE2025F6 H30H - BEEFTAM - TFIA
TFEFHARBHZERITERAR) RERMD K
RO A RIERE S RS G EXVED
237 BPR XA M & AN X 7 Ko B 52 P )
BIORR  HBRALRRAIRE 3#&3@‘5
EPIFEIBIHAEFENERMAEEIRR

Approximate

Percentage of

Shareholding

in the Total

Issued Share

Number of Capital of the

Name Nature of Interest Shares Held™ Company®
RAEQXTZIE
BITRANELN

=X ERME BERGHEHAE® REBDTLO

Ms. Tan Hui (E£)® Interest of spouse 67,460,000 55.89%

BBt il (B 4 &

Summit Plus® Interest in controlled corporation 52,460,000 43.46%

Summit Plus® LB R

Guangjun Sun Holdings® Beneficial owner 15,000,000 12.43%

Guangjun Sun Holdings® EnEB A

Junshu Holdings® Interest in controlled corporation 15,000,000 12.43%

Junshu Holdings® I EEER

Guangjun Holdings® Beneficial owner 52,460,000 43.46%

Guangjun Holdings® EnEB A

Mr. Xia lingtang” (E &%) Founder of a discretionary trust 10,680,000 8.85%

EREFRLED RRETEIMA

Interest in controlled corporation
I LAEER

Ms. Yan Xlaohang (BR/)Min)® Interest of spouse 10,680,000 8.85%

B/ @ fe B s

Jonson Xia Smile Holdings” Interest in controlled corporation 7,180,000 5.95%

Jonson Xia Smile Holdings®” R EEER

Hannah Xia Holdings"” Beneficial owner 7,180,000 5.95%

Hannah Xia Holdings” E=EAA

Trident Trust©o” Trustee 59,640,000 49.41%

B R FEON ZEEA

Kuwei Holdings Beneficial owner 8,375,400 6.94%

Kuwei Holdings E=EAA

CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) Limited® Trustee 6,208,000 5.14%

BEskEETBRATO ZFEA

Plus Group 2023 Limited® Beneficial owner 6,208,000 5.14%

Plus Group 2023 Limited® Em#EA A
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Notes:

(1

24

All interests stated are long positions.

The calculation is based on the total number of 120,701,800 Shares in
issue (including treasury shares) as of 30 June 2025. The Company had
4,891,600 treasury shares as of 30 June 2025.

Ms. Tan Hui is the spouse of Mr. Sun Guangjun. Under the SFO, Ms. Tan
Hui is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Mr. Sun
Guangjun.

As of 30 June 2025, Summit Plus is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun's Family
Trust, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun Guangjun.

As of 30 June 2025, Guangjun Sun Holdings is wholly-owned by Junshu
Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun Guangjun. Under
the SFO, Mr. Sun Guangjun is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Guangjun Sun Holdings.

As of 30 June 2025, Guangjun Holdings is held as to 99% by Summit
Plus, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun’s Family Trust, and as
to 1% by Junshu Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Sun
Guangjun. Mr. Sun’s Family Trust was established by Mr. Sun Guangjun
as the settlor for the benefit of Mr. Sun Guangjun and Junshu Holdings
with Trident Trust as the trustee. Under the SFO, Mr. Sun Guangjun is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Guangjun Holdings.

As of 30 June 2025, Hannah Xia Holdings is held as to 99% by Jonson
Xia Smile Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Xia's Family
Trust, and as to 1% by Jonson Xia Holdings, which in turn is
wholly-owned by Mr. Xia Jingtang. Mr. Xia's Family Trust was
established by Mr. Xia Jingtang as the settlor for the benefit of Mr. Xia
Jingtang and Jonson Xia Holdings with Trident Trust as the trustee.
Under the SFO, Mr. Xia Jingtang is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Hannah Xia Holdings.

Ms. Yan Xiaohang is the spouse of Mr. Xia Jingtang. Under the SFO,
Ms. Yan Xiaohang is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Mr. Xia Jingtang.

On 26 June 2023, the Board resolved to adopt the Share Award Scheme
with CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) Limited as the trustee. As of 30 June
2025, CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) Limited wholly controlled Plus Group
2023 Limited, which held 6,208,000 Shares that were purchased from
the open market for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.
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Save as disclosed above, as of 30 June 2025, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (other than the Director or chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

RSU SCHEME

On 13 January 2022, the adoption of the RSU Scheme was approved
by the Board. The purpose of the RSU Scheme is to incentivise
employees, Directors, officers, and consultants for their contribution
to the Group, to attract, motivate and retain skilled and experienced
personnel to strive for the future development and expansion of the
Group by providing them with the opportunity to own equity
interests in the Company. Robert Sun Holdings was incorporated in
the BVI for the purpose of holding Shares for grant under the RSU
Scheme. The RSU Scheme is not subject to the provisions of
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules as it does not involve any issue or
grant of RSUs by the Company after the Listing. For details, see
“Appendix IV — Statutory and General Information — D. Other
Information — 1. RSU Scheme” in the Prospectus.

No grant was made under the RSU Scheme during the Reporting
Period. As of the Latest Practicable Date, none of the RSUs under
the RSU Scheme are outstanding. The Company will not issue or
grant further RSUs under the RSU Scheme.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 26 June 2023, the Board resolved to adopt the Share Award
Scheme (i) to recognise and reward certain eligible participants for
their performance and contribution to the growth and development
of the Group; (i) to provide such eligible participants with incentives
in order to encourage and retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group; and (iii) to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group. On the same day, the
Company entered into a trust deed (the "Trust Deed”) with CMB
Wing Lung (Trustee) Limited in respect of the appointment of the
trustee (the "Trustee”) for the administration of the Share Award
Scheme.

According to the scheme rules (the “Scheme Rules”), the Board may,
either before or after identification of the grantee(s), cause to be
paid to the Trustee or the trust holdco (a company as a company
wholly-owned by the Trustee to act as the Trustee) such amount as
may be required for the purchase of existing Shares from the
market as the awarded shares (the "Awarded Shares”) for the Share
Award Scheme and other purposes set out in the Scheme Rules and
the Trust Deed. For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 26 June 2023 and 28 June 2023.
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During the Reporting Period, the Trustee did not purchase any
Shares on the open market for the purpose of the Share Award
Scheme. No Awarded Shares had been granted to any grantees
under the Share Award Scheme as of the Latest Practicable Date.
6,208,000 Shares were available for grant under the Share Award
Scheme as of the Latest Practicable Date, representing
approximately 5.14% of the total Shares of the Company in issue
(including treasury shares).

The Share Award Scheme constitutes a share scheme under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The Share Award Scheme was
contemplated and adopted to be funded solely by the existing
Shares pursuant to Rule 17.01(1)(b) of the Listing Rule and shall be
subject to the applicable disclosure requirements under Rule 17.12
of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Directors have been granted a general mandate by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
22 May 2025 to repurchase no more than 10% of the total number
of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares) (i.e. 115,810,200 Shares)
as of the date of passing of the relevant resolution, amounting to
11,581,020 Shares (the “Repurchase Mandate”).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (including sale of
treasury shares) during the Reporting Period. As of the date of this
interim report, the Company held 4,891,600 treasury shares.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

On 11 May 2023, the Shares of the Company were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The gross proceeds from the
Listing were HK$265.0 million. The aggregate net proceeds from the
Listing, after deduction of underwriting fees and other related
expenses, amounted to approximately HK$206.7 million. From the
Listing Date and up to 30 June 2025, the Group has progressively
utilised the proceeds from the initial public offering in accordance
with the intended use as set out in (i) the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus; and (i) the
announcement of the Company in relation to the change in the use
of proceeds dated 22 November 2024. The details are set out as
follows:

TEERRAEMER

B RERE

R2023F5 1B - RNA TR BT EIR
e ETASRIERRER25.08 8B T °
NEeEERREMERER SR EWAE
RIBFEAENE2067EEE T 8 LWH
B M B E2025F6 A30H  AEBE & Sk
BOBRERIARRFTERFAERERAR] —
g k(A2 a BEIA2024F 11 H228 - A
ABEBEEMSHEARN QSRS TR
BRERBRAARBEEMGRIE - FHEHI W
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Actual Actual Revised
net amount Proceeds  net amount  net amount
utilised brought utilised unutilised
as of forward as of  during the as of  Expected timeline for
Total amount  Amount been Revised Revised 30 June 1 January Reporting 30 June utilising the unutilised
Use of proceeds before change adjusted  percentage net proceeds 2025 2025 Period 2025 net amount
HE202% BE2025F BZ2025%F
6A308 1818 REREHR 6A308
BT g7 BEBREEAR 8K ERCER BT ERAREAFED
FERERR BENAE HENSE BAL AERARE BE ERE FR ORAEARE RUBEX
(HK$ million)  (HK$ million) (%) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BE%ER) (EBER) (%) (AB%R) (B&#ER) (FEB%ERT) (FBHER) (BEER)

Enhancing the core technology 66.1 — 32.0% 66.1 135 59.1 6.5 52,6 will be gradually used up
capabilities and fundamental to 31 December 2027
R&D of the Company

MEEARR BB AT N R RESRER EE
B 20275 12A318

Pursuing strategic investment, 620 —62.0 — — — — — - -
acquisition and cooperation

EREBERE  KBRAHE

Enhancing the Company's 424 +237 32.0% 66.1 60.2 412 353 59  will be gradually used up
capabilities in sales and to 31 December 2027
marketing

REARANHEREHE BESER EE

2027512 A31H
Repaying the bank borrowings 155 — 7.5% 155 15.5 - — — fully used as of 30 June
of the Company 2023
BEARANRTER BZE202356A30R
E2mEM

Working capital 20.7 +38.3 28.5% 59.0 59.0 183 183 — fully used as of 30 June
2025

2EES HE202556A30H
ERHER

Total 206.7 - 100.0% 206.7 1482 118.6 60.1 58.5

it
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Notes:

(1) The total amount of net proceeds to be used for “Enhancing the core
technology capabilities and fundamental R&D of the Group” would not
be changed whereas the use of such amount would be extended from
(i) the continuous maintaining and upgrading of the FMES platform and
digitalized tools; and (i) the establishment of a cloud-based sales and
marketing platform as a service (PaaS) system, to also include (iii) the
continuous maintaining and upgrading of the existing information
technology systems and to support general R&D needs of the Group.

(2)  The difference between the actual net proceeds from the initial public
offering and the previous estimation mainly represents underwriting
incentive fees, overtime payment to intermediaries and other
disbursements which were determined after the Listing.

Reasons and benefits of the change and delay in the use
of net proceeds

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22
November 2024, after careful consideration and detailed evaluation
of the Group’s operations and business strategy, the Board has
resolved to change the use of the unutilised portion of the net
proceeds from the Listing, details of which were set out as follows:

(@) Changes in “Enhancing the core technology capabilities and
fundamental R&D of the Group”

The Group intends to expand the coverage area of unutilised
HK$60.5 million allocated for “Enhancing the core technology
capabilities and fundamental R&D" in order to allow the Group
to adjust its technology capability and R&D development plan
in a more flexible and effective way in accordance with the
ever-changing needs of its business development and actual
requirements raised by its customers, whereas the total
amount and efforts to be devoted by the Group in “Enhancing
the core technology capabilities and fundamental R&D" would
not be reduced.

(b) Changes in “Pursuing strategic investment, acquisition and
cooperation”

The Group intends to reallocate unutilised HK$62.0 million
under “Pursuing strategic investment, acquisition and
cooperation” to “Enhancing the Group's capabilities in sales
and marketing” and “Working Capital”, mainly because the
Group has adopted the strategy to setting up joint ventures
with business partners to expanding into new markets and/or
business area instead of making acquisitions. Given the
uncertainties over the retail market of China which in turn
affected the business and financial performance of potential
acquisition targets, the Company believes setting up joint
ventures is a more prudent approach compared to acquisitions
as setting up joint ventures require less initial investment
capital and the Company can share the risks of operation (if
any) with the business partner of the joint venture. The Group
has successfully set up several joint ventures with strategic
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business partners for the development of 020 real-time retail
marketing services and matching service platform which would
enable the Group to out to potential news customers and
points of sale from different industries such as the new retail
industry and timely service industry. As setting up joint
ventures require less capital than acquisitions and subsequent
forming of joint ventures, they would require working capital to
support their sales and marketing in new business lines and
services industries as well as supporting their daily operations,
the Group decided to reallocate such net proceeds to
“Enhancing the Group’s capabilities in sales and marketing”
and “Working Capital”.

Changes in “Enhancing the Group’s capabilities in sales and
marketing”

For the reasons as mentioned in (b) above, the Group would
like to reallocate an additional of HK$23.7 million net proceeds
to “Enhancing the Group's capabilities in sales and marketing”
in order to support its sales and marketing in new business
lines and services industries after the establishment of the joint
ventures as well as other sales and marketing needs in its
daily operation.

Changes in “Working capital”

The Group intends to reallocate an additional of HK$38.3
million net proceeds to “Working capital”, mainly in order to
facilitate the working capital of the new established joint
ventures as well as to allow the Group to utilise its financial
resources in a more flexible, beneficial and effective way. The
Board is also of the view that the reallocation will allow the
Group to meet its operational needs and provide more buffer
to cope with the economic uncertainties in the future.

The expected timeline for the use of net proceeds allocated to
“Enhancing the core technology capabilities and fundamental R&D of
the Group”, “Enhancing the Group’s capabilities in sales and
marketing” and “Working Capital” has been delayed, mainly because
the Group has make necessary adjustments to the timeline based on
the business development and actual requirements raised by its
customers, and has adopted the strategy to setting up joint ventures
with business partners to expanding into new markets and/or
business area instead of making acquisitions.

The Board believes the aforesaid change is fair and reasonable as
this would allow the Group to deploy its financial resources more
efficiently in maintaining lower gearing ratio and incur less interest
expenses, which is in the interest of the Group and the Shareholders
as a whole.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules. As of the date of this interim report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Lau Man
Tak, Ms. Lin Feng and Mr. Ngan Wing Ho). Mr. Lau Man Tak is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2025 are
unaudited and have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, and
have been reviewed by Rongcheng (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
(formerly known as CL Partners CPA Limited), the independent
auditors of the Company (the "Auditor”), in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Review Engagements 2410 “Review of Interim
Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA"). Based on the review, except for the
matter described below, nothing has come to attention that cause
the Audit Committee and Rongcheng (Hong Kong) CPA Limited to
believe that the interim condensed consolidated financial statements
are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Hong
Kong Auditing Standards (the “HKAS") 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting” issued by the HKICPA.

As disclosed in note 7 to the interim condensed consolidated
financial statement for the six months ended 30 June 2025, in
September 2023, the Group invested HK$30,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB27,187,000) and HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to RMB9,062,000)
respectively in two investments with guaranteed return rates of
5.15% and 5.10% respectively, which were both private offshore
funds (the “Funds”) newly established in the Cayman Islands. The
Funds were classified as other financial assets measured at
amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023. The Group did not accrue for any guaranteed
returns from the Funds for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2024. In March 2024, the Group redeemed the Funds and collected
the investment principal together with return amounting to
HK$40,330,000 (equivalent to RMB36,595,000). A gain on redemption
of other financial assets at amortised cost amounting to
approximately HK$333,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB302,000)
was recognised in profit or loss during the six months ended
30 June 2024. The Group’s management was not able to obtain
supporting documents about the balance of the Funds, the
underlying assets held by the Funds and the value of the Funds as
at 31 December 2023 and at the date of redemption.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 were audited by the predecessor auditor
(the “Predecessor Auditor”) who expressed a qualified opinion due to
a limitation of audit scope concerning the Funds on those financial
statements. The Predecessor Auditor was unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy themselves as to the
commercial substance of the transactions related to the Funds and
to the accuracy, existence, classification, valuation, and presentation
of the Funds and whether the effects of these transactions related
to the Funds, including the related cashflows, had been properly
accounted for and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024 were audited by Rongcheng (Hong Kong)
CPA Limited who expressed a qualified opinion due to a limitation of
audit scope concerning the Funds. The closing balance of the Funds
held by the Group as at 31 December 2023 was carried forward as
the opening balances as at 1 January 2024 and hence entered into
the determination of the financial performance of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2024. Any adjustments found to
be necessary to the opening balances of the Funds as at 1 January
2024 might have material effects on the Group's results for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2024 and related disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Since the Funds have been fully redeemed and collected in March
2024, the carrying amount of the Funds will not appear as the
opening balance in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2025. The Auditor and the Audit Committee of
the Company are of the view that the qualified opinion will not have
carry forward effect on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 31 December 2025.

For details of the above matter, please refer to the annual report of
the Company dated 28 April 2025. As of the date of this interim
report, the management of the Company has taken the following
further actions with regards to the matter above: () amended
investment policy, including but not limited to require more
sophisticated supporting documents and enhance the
communication mechanism between the investment committee, the
management of the Company and the Audit Committee; (ii)
established an investment committee consisting of Directors, key
personnel of the financial department and the compliance
department to review investment decisions and the implementation
of investment policy; and (iii) took legal actions by issuing demand
letter to the Funds and kept request of the outstanding guaranteed
returned amount but no feedback were received as of the date of
this interim report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
six months ended 30 June 2025 (30 June 2024: Nil).
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

TEERRAEMER

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group had engaged third-party
human resources agencies to pay social insurance and housing
provident funds for certain employees of the Group from 2020 to
2023. With a view to rectifying such agency arrangement, the
Company plans to set up branch offices in no less than 25 cities in
the PRC (i.e. one branch office for one location) according to the
rectification schedule where the existing employees work and
transfer their social insurance and housing provident fund accounts
from third-party agencies to the newly established branch offices of
the Group.

As of 30 June 2025, the Company has set up over 50 branches, and
the transfer of accounts for around 98.7% of the employees whose
social insurance and housing provident funds were made through
third-party human resources agencies has been completed. The
transfer of accounts for the remaining 1.3%, which represented less
than 2.0% of the total number of employees of the Company, is
subject to practical difficulties which are beyond the control of the
Company, such as employees who were in medical period, suffered
injure accident, in the application of housing provident fund loan or
would be retired soon.

The Company will closely monitor the situation of the remaining
employees whose social insurance and housing provident funds are
still made through third-party human resources agencies as of
30 June 2025 and arrange to complete the rectification actions as
early as possible. Progress of such rectification actions will be
disclosed in the Company’s future annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Board is aware, during the
Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in all
material respects.

AMENDMENT OF THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

There are no amendments of the Articles of Association that are
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(1) of the Listing Rules
during the Reporting Period.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE

There are no changes in the information of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company that are required to be disclosed under
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There was no significant subsequent event undertaken by the Group
subsequent to 30 June 2025 and up to the date of this interim
report.
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
hHIS RSS2 ERER

Six months ended 30 June

BZ6H30B L<EA
2025 2024
2025 F 20244F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®T T AR®ETF T
Unaudited Unaudited
RGBT RECERT
Revenue PN 6 1,631,270 342,597
Cost of services Bl 75 B A< 8 (1,549,185) (293,741)
Gross profit EF 82,085 48,856
Administrative expenses THRAX 8 (44,776) (43,151)
Selling and marketing expenses HERZHERAY 8 (27,299) (10,515)
Research and development expenses — #ff 25 &2 8 (5,542) (13,083)
Other income H bz A 7 11,038 5,455
Other (losses) gains, net E b (B598) W F 58 7 (474) 10,301
Impairment losses on trade receivables, & ZRWHIE - GHEER
contract assets and other receivables, b & U ZR I8 ol B &5 18
net HEE (2,383) (2,906)
Operating profit (loss) ReEHR (BR) 12,649 (5,043)
Finance income B A 10 1,351 1,799
Finance costs B T B AR 10 (2,241) (1,348)
Finance (costs) income, net B (AR ) WA S &R (890) 451
Share of result of associates, net FEAG B & A R & F R (97) (30)
Profit (loss) before income tax BrRET B ANER (E5HE) 11,662 (4,622)
Income tax (expense) credit Frisfi (M) K& 11 (3,678) 855
Profit (loss) for the period HRER (518) 7,984 (3,767)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive  FE{E I AR (B518) &
income (expense) for the period THE Wz (BX) B :
attributable to:
Oowners of the Company KAEHER A 6,317 (3,493)
Non-controlling interests FE5E AR i 2 1,667 (274)
7,984 (3,767)
Earning (loss) per share attributable to ZAAFREEAEEESR
the owners of the Company BF (&8)
Basic and diluted ERREE
(expressed in RMB per share) (AEBRAREYIR) 12 0.06 (0.03)
LHMEEZRERAR —T-HFHRHRE 33



INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B A AR & B B IR R R

As at As at
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
12025 F R 20245
6H30H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR%T T ARETFIT
Unaudited Audited
RGBT L
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment V] 14 1,229 1,406
Right-of-use assets FREEE 4,134 3,192
Investments in associates REERARIHIRE 4,569 4,666
Deferred tax assets FEIERRIBE = 4,193 1,259
14,125 10,523
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables B 5 EWKIE 15(a) 369,208 329,443
Deposits, other receivables and Ze - HibEWFHIER
prepayments TEfTRIB 15(b) 113,472 103,920
Contract assets AEHEE 16 163,036 197,153
contract costs B IR 1,888 22
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEY 149,180 159,647
796,784 790,185
Total assets EEHAE 810,909 800,708
EQUITY s
Share capital fi& 7 17(a) 159 159
Share premium &0 w8 193,755 193,755
Other reserves EqthfF# 17(b) 89,780 76,638
Retained earnings RBAF 200,178 207,003
Equity attributable to owners of RAEIEB AEGEZR
the Company 483,872 477,555
Non-controlling interests IR 6,844 2,110
Total equity RERBE 490,716 479,665
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR BR AR S B B AR R

As at AS at
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
12025 F K 2024 F
6H30H 12H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iiE=s ARE T ARMT T
Unaudited Audited
KRG EG Lt
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE 2,476 1,224
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H A FE < 518 19 180,372 176,129
Contract liabilities aHAaE 44,606 38,640
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAST > B2 iR AR 3R IE
shareholders 21 10,535 33,953
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,847 2,346
Borrowings & 20 77,948 64,148
Tax payables FERT R IR 2,409 4,603
317,717 319,819
Total liabilities EERE 320,193 321,043
Total equity and liabilities EzRBERESE 810,909 800,708
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HHISRGRSEREE R

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARARANES

Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling
capital premium reserves earnings Sub-total interests  Total equity
BE  BRHRE  EtHE  REEA Nt OEERER  ER8E
RMB/000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB/000  RMB'000
ARETT AR%Trn AR¥Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETn AR%T:n
Six months ended HZ202556A8308 1
30 June 2025 (Unaudited) ~MER (RBEH)
Balance at 1 January 2025 #2025 1 A1H ML 159 193,755 76,638 207,003 477,555 2,110 479,665
Profit and total comprehensive income  HIREF R 2 EME A
for the period - - - 6,317 6,317 1,667 7,984
Capital contribution from non-controlling & & Ht B2 &4 AR AR R &
shareholders of subsidiaries HE — — — — — 3,067 3,067
Transfer to statutory reserves ERTATRE — - 13,142 (13,142) - - -
Balance at 30 June 2025 1202556 A30 B f 45 159 193,755 89,780 200,178 483,872 6,844 490,716
Six months ended HZ2024%F6530A
30 June 2024 (Unaudited) IEREA (REEE)
Balance at 1 January 2024 12024181 B LR 165 213,645 94,283 200,089 508,182 - 508,182
Loss and total comprehensive expense  BAEERZEMY 2E
for the period — - — (3,493) (3493) (274) (3,767)
Capital contribution from non-controlling  REMBA R4 BERBREH
shareholders of subsidiaries HE — — - — — 1,333 1,333
Cancellation of share repurchased HEER KR () (19,720) 19,669 = (56) — (56)
Cancellation of restricted share unit BB R R (7 B A5t 8
scheme M = 1 = = = =
Transfer to statutory reserves ERZAERE = = 1,999 (1,999) — — —
Balance at 30 June 2024 202456 A30A & & 159 193,925 115,952 194,597 504,633 1,059 505,692
PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Interim Report 2025
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FHBRGESRERER

Six months ended 30 June

BZ6H30BIEAEA
2025 2024
2025 F 20244
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBTIT
Unaudited Unaudited
RECEST RACE ST
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHBRERE
Net cash generated from (used in) rEmF (AR FE
operations 6,560 (59,198)
Income tax paid BT HE (8,806) (801)
Net cash used in operating activities ~ MEEBAREFHE 2246) | (59,999
Cash flows from investing activities REFHNRAESRE
Interest received 2 FE 1,351 1,799
Purchase of plant and equipment BEME L& (89) (66)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and B B E KR P15 58
equipment — 1
Redemption of other financial assets BB B IR B S AN ET 2/
at amortised cost HttemEE — 36,595
Net cash from investing activities BB ZEBASALFR | 1,262 | 38,329
Cash flows from financing activities METHNRESRE
Interest paid EENEES) (1,482) (1,306)
Repayment of lease liabilities (including EEHEEE(BENE
interest expenses) ) (1,922) (1,113)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE R PT1S F B 61,800 60,150
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITHERK (48,000) (80,150)
(Repayment to) advance from (BELEERKRRBR)
non-controlling shareholders BT IS IR R EA K (20,840) 36,193
Cancellation of share repurchased =T S B B AR 1D — (56)
Net cash (used in) from MEETS (FTAH)BRE
B ok S aodad | 8715
EAMEREREARAT —S-HEREKE 37



Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FHERSRSRERER

Six months ended 30 June

BZ6H308 L<EA
2025 2024
2025 F 20244F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Unaudited Unaudited
KRBT RACEE 5T
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEYRD FHE (11,428) (7,952)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREFHHNZE 961 518
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of HI¥IR L ML ZEY
period 159,647 190,976
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period HIKEERELZEY 149,180 183,542
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
30 September 2021 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as
amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time) of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since
May 2023. The address of the Company's registered office is
71 Fort Street, PO Box 500, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY-
1106, Cayman Islands. The Company’'s principal place of
business in Hong Kong is located in Room 1202, 12/F, Sun
House, 90 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the customised
marketing solution, task and marketers matching service,
marketers assignment service and SaaS+ subscription and
other services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
The ultimate holding company of the Company is Junshu
Holdings Limited. The ultimate controlling party of the
Company is Mr. Sun Guangjun (“Mr. Sun”).

This interim condensed consolidated financial information (the
“Interim Financial Information”) is presented in Renminbi,
unless otherwise stated, and has been approved for issue by
the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company on
29 August 2025.

The interim condensed consolidated financial information has
not been audited.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The condensed consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard
34 ("HKAS 34") “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
as well as the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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Notes to the Interim Financial Information

o5 B S B R R
3  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

40

INFORMATION

The accounting policies used in the condensed consolidated
interim financial statements are consistent with those followed
in the preparation of the annual consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024.

Application of amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards

In the current interim period, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards issued
by the HKICPA, for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January
2025 for the preparation of the Group’s condensed
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to
HKAS21

Lack of Exchangeability

The application of the amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in the current interim period has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for
the current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out
in these condensed consolidated financial statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In the preparation of the condensed consolidated interim
financial statements of the Group, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses reported and disclosures made in the
condensed consolidated interim financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing these condensed consolidated interim financial
statements, the significant judgements made by the
management in applying the Group’s accounting policies and
the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as
those that applied to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Interim Report 2025
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Notes to the Interim Financial Information

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5.1

5.2

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The interim financial information does not include all
financial risk management information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should
be read in conjunction with the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024.

There have been no changes in any risk management
policies since year end.

Fair value estimation

The Group analyses its financial instruments’ fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).
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Notes to the Interim Financial Information

o5 B S B R R
6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6

42

The Chairman of the Company has been identified as the chief
operating decision maker of the Group who reviews the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocates resources. The Chairman of the Company regards the
Group’s business as a single operating segment and review
interim condensed consolidated financial information
accordingly.

(@) Disaggregation of revenue

W 3 K 7 B &
ARAERFEREES/AEENERE
BRRE HBEENASENRIR
EAFEBEURAEER - ARBERE
BAREXBRE—KEDH LR
ER T HBARSHBER -

(@) UWEsER4H

Six months ended 30 June

BZ6HA308 LK<EA
2025 2024
2025 20244
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
Unaudited Unaudited
RGETT RACEE 5T
Revenue from: RELUT BB :
Customised marketing solution TE il & 85 BB OR 7 B 371,744 264,776
Tasks and marketers matching ER & H A B UL AR TS
service 1,220,423 56,296
Marketers assignment service = IHA BIREL AR 11,492 11,960
SaaS+ subscription and other SaaS+7] B K E b AR 75
services 27,611 9,565
1,631,270 342,597

All revenue of the Group is recognised over time for the
periods.

(b) Geographical information

All the revenue and non-current assets are based in the
PRC for the six months ended 30 June 2025 and 2024.

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Interim Report 2025
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Notes to the Interim Financial Information

HER B I B R EE
OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES) 7 HtWARHEM(EE) ks
GAINS, NET R
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6A30HL~<AEA
2024
2025 20245
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFT
Unaudited Unaudited
REEEST RICEE 5T
Other income Hk A
Government grants (note (i)) BT f8 Bh (B ) 10,686 5,355
Others Hfb 352 100
11,038 5,455
Other (losses) gains, net Hh (F#8) W T8
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain SNEE (B598) Wz F 58 (459) 562
Reversal on pension return to MEFPREMSREED
customers (note (ii)) (KT£() — 9,466
Gain on redemption of other financial BB R SH P AT 2 R HAD
assets at amortised cost (note (i) DA EN R
(B 72 (i) — 302
Others HAh (15) (29)
474) 10,301
ZHMEEZERERAT —STHFRHHE 43
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o 5 B 35 B R B

44

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)
GAINS, NET (CONTINUED)

0]

(i)

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

The government grants mainly consisted of job-subsidy
programme and companies registration subsidies for the six
months ended 30 June 2025 and 2024. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or other contingencies attaching to these grants. The
Group did not benefit directly from any other forms of material
government assistance.

Due to the impact of COVID-19, the Group was entitled to reduce
from social security payments by the government for certain
periods during the year of 2020. The total payment, received
from customers related to marketers assignment service for
settling the social insurance obligation but subsequently reduced
by the government, was approximately RMB70,788,000. The
Group had refunded RMB22,773,000 to customers (the
“Refund”), and reversed the refundable amount of
RMB48,015,000 as other gain since the year of 2020 because
management considered the limitation of action and legal
obligation on certain pension refund to customers was expired
(the “Reversal”). After the Refund and Reversal, the refundable
balance was nil as at 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024.

In September 2023, the Group invested HK$30,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB27,187,000) and HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB9,062,000) respectively in two investments with guaranteed
return rates of 5.15% and 5.10% respectively, which were both
private offshore funds (the “Funds”) newly established in
Cayman Island. The investment objectives of the Funds were to
invest in bank deposit, bonds, notes, national debt, banker’s
acceptance draft, and other similar financial instruments. The
Funds were classified as other financial assets measured at
amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023. In March 2024, the Group
redeemed the Funds and collected the investment principal
together with return amounting to HK$40,330,000 (equivalent to
RMB36,595,000).

Interim Report 2025
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Habg AR HAth (F518) s
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0]

(i)

B 220254 20246 4308 Lk 75 1@
A BA#HE2EETIEMBETE
RN RIREM 4R BE o 5% % 47 B I B 75
RERGHHEMHAER - AEE
WEEEZSENMEMEMTANER
BT ER)

% COVID-19% & - A& B B #7 2020
FHE T EMANERTR D X R
MR- BHEBEFPUMERHEHEAS
KRS A B REISERERER
FRENTRBEEHOAEARE
70,788,0007T ° 7~ & B B 820204 #
BmEFIRE ARM22773,0007T ([E
BHIE]) - WHAEE B R AFARER
FAREPRELETHERBRAERE
EESEm - F itk 78 520204 # #§ 7]
iR I8 FUIE A R #48,015,0007T # 5 H
et ([BEERIZRIE]) - RIEERIBE R
B @K IB% - N2025F6 A30R &
20244E12 A31 B W E A R IB A4 o

202349 B » 7<% [E 4% & 30,000,000
Bt (FBE R AR27,187,0007T) &
10,000,000/ T (M &E BN AR
9,062,00070) R L & 1R & B 3R
RSB A5.15% 5% 5.10% * W& 5 AR
MEBREFKLMFLARIINES ([Z
ZHS)) ZEESNREEEAR
BRITER EF ZEE BHE-R
TARREZREMBEUESHTE - Z
ZHEMN2023E12 A31BHGRE T
MARF D BRBREHEKAFTENE
& FEEE - 202438 - AEEL
fEOZEED  WRERELASER
[B] 7 40,330,000 7t (F#8 & W A R &
36,595,0007T) °



Notes to the Interim Financial Information

HER B I B R EE
EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 RMEIINFAX
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6A30HL~<AEA
2025 2024
2025 20245
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFT
Unaudited Unaudited
REEEST RICEE 5T
Employee benefit expenses (including EERNASZ (REES
directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) <) (H1aE9) 124,670 197,795
Labour service fees BisE 1,309,147 120,312
Research, development and technical T 3% R B 1T AR 75 7 =2
service expenses 5,542 9,753
Office expenses WARERZ 8,519 8,099
Event consumables V& Bl 8 #E oo 3,197 5,091
Promotion expenses for online platform % F ¥ & #ER X 137,879 —
Travel and transportation expenses ERRZBAKL 27,464 14,091
Other taxes and levies BB REE 7,224 2,332
Amortisation and depreciation B RITE 1,729 1,026
Auditor's remuneration (2 GiEd 525 525
Other expenses HEi 906 1,466
1,626,802 360,490
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EERAMAX
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6HA30HL~<AEA
2025 2024
2025 20245
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AR¥ET T
Unaudited Unaudited
RQEG REEEE 5T
Wages and salaries TEERS® 93,294 143,520
Discretionary bonuses [k an 2,440 6,361
Contributions to pension plans BRIRNEETEI 18,945 34,792
Housing benefits and other expenses FTERMEREMAS 9,991 13,122
124,670 197,795
LEMEEZRERAR —T-HFHRHERE 45



Notes to the Interim Financial Information

HER B IS B R
10 FINANCE INCOME (COSTS), NET 10 BBWA (F) F5E
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6H30B1EA@EA
2025 2024
2025 20245
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFTT
Unaudited Unaudited
REEEST RACEET
Finance income B 75U
— Bank interest income — RITA BUA 1,351 1,799
1,351 1,799
Finance costs B 75 P 2R
— Interest expenses for bank borrowings — $R17 & ZF B X (1,131) (1,024)
— Interest for trade receivables factoring — & 5 & YR IE (R IB F B (306) (209)
— Interest expenses on lease liabilites — HAEBEFEFERX (270) (42)
— Interest expenses on amounts due to — FEH A i AR AR R
non-controlling shareholders BF B FHXZ (534) (73)
(2,241) (1,348)
(890) 451
11 INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT 11 FifEH (BAxX)ER
(@) Cayman Islands and BVI Income Tax (@) FIEHERRBERHEEM
8
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on AEBEEREEBXREAEE
profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in B A R R A& T ER S A
which members of the Group are domiciled and operate. JAE B[R A m B IR B R A AR
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Figf - BIEHRESHESNEBER
Islands and British Virgin Islands, members of the Group TSR RER  RESE
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin EREBRIAES MR
Islands are not subject to any income tax. SEKE QR BEBNERTE
it o
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Notes to the Interim Financial Information

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(0

(d)

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5%. No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the Group did not
have assessable profits in Hong Kong during the six
months ended 30 June 2025 and 2024.

PRC Withholding Tax

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations,
dividends distributed by a company established in the
PRC to a foreign investor with respect to profits derived
after 1 January 2008 are generally subject to a 10%
withholding tax. If a foreign investor incorporated in Hong
Kong meets the conditions and requirements under the
double taxation treaty arrangement entered into between
the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant withholding tax rate
will be reduced from 10% to 5%. The applicable
withholding tax rates of the group company in Hong Kong
is 10%.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate
of 25% on the taxable profits of the Group’s PRC
significant subsidiaries for the six months ended 30 June
2025 and 2024.

Shanghai Retail Winner Digital Technologies Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Retail Winner”), a subsidiary of the Company,
had applied to the relevant tax bureau and was granted
the qualification as High and New Technology Enterprise
("HNTE") in 2022, which will expire in November 2025. It
is subject to a preferential income tax rate of 15%.
Based on management’'s assessment, it is highly
probable that Shanghai Retail Winner will continue to
meet the requirements of HNTE.

(b)

(0

(d)

ERMEEZERERAFE

o 5 Bt 35 LB R

11 FrEHR (FAX)ER (&)

ERANEH
EBFEHIEEE16.5% ° AL
& B A £ 20255 202446 A
308 IE7S1E A 72 & A8 & R
i I O 2 e M| RS o
R o

EFE B
BIEEATREBREER  RPAE
B E) A A 200841 A1 BB E
A B m B R FNB 4% & 2 5 R B R
B—fRBEMI0%TEHT o HAE
B HIINEIREEFE B
B E2 2 5 5] 37 HY 38 R B B R
TR RATE - AIEEE
W E A B10%8 £5% - & &
REIRBEBENERBINRE R A
10% °

FEEEMER

R B 22025 &2024F 6 H30H
IEAREAR ERAEEFHEE
B8 2 B A P ER B i F1I4% 25% RO R
KRR B ERE R -

AAERIKT B A F B8 E B KM
EEEMARAT ([ LEEBXK
mD)EmMEERSHERESH
Bt ((SHEMeE)NE
1% BREERE R2022F % H -
I # K 2025911 A I8 - 3Z A &)
E15% M BEMEHRHE R - B
BEREMNTM  EEHEBERM
MA e ER S BTRMEEN

P

—RCRFPHEBE 47
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o5 B S B R R
11 INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT

48

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

(CONTINUED)
(d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (Continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC were
qualified as “Small Low-Profit Enterprise” since 2019.
“Small Low-Profit Enterprise” was entitled to a
preferential income tax rate that was calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
For the six-month periods ended 30 June 2025 and 2024,
the first RMB1,000,000 of the taxation amount for
qualified entities are taxed at 20%, and the taxable
income above RMB1,000,000 are taxed at 25%.

The amounts of income tax expense charged (credited) to
the interim condensed consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represent:

11

FrEs (FAx) B2 (&)

(d)

TEREXEFEHR (F)
AEERTFENETHERRA
20194 A BARE A [/NELIR I B
Rl [EBNERIEEZER
BENENMEG T EOBERG
BB R o OB 220255 K 20244
6A30R LLNEAHIE - BEBRE
B8 & A K #1,000,0007T F& R 10
WAIRZ20% OB R EAEL - MABEA
ER 1,000,000 7T B & ER 0 A 3R
25%H) Bt R

KBS RES 2 KSR
SR MER (B%R) S8

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30H LLA1EA
2025 2024
2025 20244
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AERET T
Unaudited Unaudited
RZET RACE T

Current income tax BNERFT1S 7%

— The PRC current tax — B BRNEfRR 1A 6,643 1,898
Deferred tax EER IR (2,965) (2,753)
3,678 (855)

Interim Report 2025



12

13

14

Notes to the Interim Financial Information

HER B I B R EE
EARNING (LOSS) PER SHARE 12 BREMN(EH)
(@) Basic @ EZXF
Basic earning (loss) per shares is calculated by dividing B 220259 K 20246 A30H 1E
the profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company NEA - BREARZF (FE)Z
less treasury stock by the weighted average number of RRARHE AEL R (BB) R
ordinary shares in issue during the six months ended JE5 17 AR BR LA B 3547 3 3 AR 00 4
30 June 2025 and 2024. BHEEE -
Six months ended 30 June
HBZ6H30BL~EA
2025 2024
2025 20244
Unaudited Unaudited
RGBT RIS EET
Profit (loss) attributable to owners — AN &% A A FEAE % 7
of the Company (RMB'000) (BR)(AREBTT) 6,317 (3,493)
Weighted average number of B EIT T AR NI T S8
ordinary shares in issue 109,602,200 123,421,612
Basic earning (loss) per share EREXRER (EE)
(in RMB) (ARE) 0.06 (0.03)
(b) Diluted (b) #H
Diluted earning (loss) per share for both periods were the WEHARSREERF (Fi8) M
same as the basic earnings per share as there were no FREAARRBFAER @ RE R E
potential ordinary shares in issue for both periods. HARRI B BT BT RAR
DIVIDEND 13 KRE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the six months REE2025% 6 4308 LE 7~ i A I £k
ended 30 June 2025, nor has any dividend been proposed M EIREE - kB HIRE B ARE
since the end of the interim reporting period (six months B 5k AR B (8 2202466 A30H
ended 30 June 2024: Nil). IEREA &) -
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 BERSE

Additions to plant and equipment for the six months ended
30 June 2025 amounted to approximately RMB89,000 (Six
months ended 30 June 2024: RMB66,000).

Disposals of plant and equipment for the six months ended
30 June 2024 amounted to approximately RMB1,000 (Six
months ended 30 June 2025: Nil).

HE2025F6A30H IENEAARE SR
AR EES,000T i E K&l (B =
20246 A30B IENA A : AR
66,0007T) °

BE2024F6 A30R IENEAA L ES R
HWAR®E1000TT M E MR (B =
2025F6 A30B IEXEA : F) ©
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oA B B AR Y

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

50

(@)

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

Trade receivables

15 BEFEWRE - Z€ - HME

W R38R TR A RO

@ EBEZEWRE

As at As at

30 June 31 December

2025 2024

72025 F 2024

6H30H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®¥T T ARET T

Unaudited Audited

RE&HFST S

Trade receivables 5 EWFKIE 373,541 331,229
Less: allowance for impairment of & : B 5 B U s IR (B B s

trade receivables (4,333) (1,786)

Trade receivables, net 5 RWRIBFE 369,208 329,443

The aging analysis of the gross trade receivables based

BHRWFBABEENER B

on invoice date is as follows: HIBRIR DATIA T ¢
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
72025 F R 2024 4
6H30H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Unaudited Audited
RE&HFST S
1-60 days 1£260H 238,015 218,551
61-120 days 61£2120H 120,862 100,222
121-180 days 1212180 H 14,381 11,955
Over 180 days 180H M k= 283 501
373,541 331,229

The standard payment terms are generally from 30 days

to 180 days.

The aging of trade receivables is mainly within 180 days
after invoicing depending on the nature of services. The
Group's trade receivables are denominated in RMB and
initially recognised at transaction price on gross amount.

Interim Report 2025
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oA B IS AR Y

15 EFEWRE - Z€ HME

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, OTHER N
W R 8 & TR A FROR ()

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deposits, other receivables and prepayments

(b)

AS at
31 December
2024
72025 F R 20244
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARBFIT
Unaudited Audited
REQEG BT
Value-added tax receivables from & B & P H) e g E
customers 6,807 9,707
Deposits to external labour service Sz 15 F oMb &5 75 (& i &9
provider e 46,085 42,457
Other deposits — third parties Hthike — F=5 1,632 1,868
Other receivables — staff HEMEWHE — BT 630 379
Other receivables — others E b fEYGRIE — HAtb 241 10
55,395 54,421
Less: allowance for impairment of & @ E i & Uk ZR IR (B B 4
other receivables (1,484) 1,419)
Other receivables, net H b fE W FRIB F 58 53,911 53,002
Prepaid income taxes BB 2,564 2,564
Prepayment to online platform in  Bt020BN# T & & §5 R 75
relation to 020 real-time retail AT EF A RIAE
marketing services 19,756 16,221
Other prepayments to suppliers H b TEAS e B FRIE 37,241 32,133
Current portion BN ER & 19 113,472 103,920

AEEMZE  HtERFHER
BNHRBEETEUAREE -

The Group's deposits, other receivables and prepayments
are mainly denominated in RMB.

ERMEBIZRERAET —B-RFPHEHE 5]
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oA B B AR Y

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

16

52

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

(CONTINUED)

(b) Deposits, other receivables and prepayments

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits,
other receivables and prepayments approximate to their
fair values. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
end of 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024 is carrying
amount of each class of trade receivables, deposits,

other receivables and prepayments mentioned above.

CONTRACT ASSETS

15

16

EZRWHIE - RE  HtfE
WA R A ROE ()

(b) &  HhEWFIBEBRFEN
;IE (8&)
BRI HTE e HiEl
HREREMNFEMNEREAEEELD
FEEE - BN2025%6A308 &
202412 A31 B & RN TR A
ERBM DA RS EE FEK
RIE B HtBEKGKEAEKRE
NEIERRERE -

BREE

As at As at

30 June 31 December

2025 2024

20254 20244

6H30H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Unaudited Audited

RGETT AT

Customised marketing solution TE il & SRR T B 107,700 125,762

Tasks and marketers matching service — {EF§E 284 A B ITEE RS 3,578 6,235

Marketers assignment service &85 A BIK 5 AR 75 52,463 63,147

SaaS+ subscription and other services SaaS+7] B K E b AR 75 1,404 4,346
Contract assets — gross carrying AREE — RABE

amount 165,145 199,490
Less: allowance for impairment of B AREERBERE

contract assets (2,109) (2,337)

Contract assets — net BREE — FF 163,036 197,153

The Group’s contract assets are denominated in RMB and

initially recognised at transaction price on gross amount.

Interim Report 2025
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17 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@)

Notes to the Interim Financial Information

oA B IS AR Y

Share capital of the Company

17 BRAR#HE
@ ZEATDRK

Number of Equivalent
ordinary nominal value of
shares ordinary share
B
TEREE HEEE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Authorised: EIE
As at 1 January 2025 and R2025F1 18 &
30 June 2025 (unaudited) 202546 A30H
(REEzERT) 250,000,000 324
As at 1 January 2024 and M2024F1A18 &
30 June 2024 (unaudited) 20246 A30H
(REES) 250,000,000 324
Number of Equivalent
ordinary nominal value of
shares ordinary share
ZERW
TEREE HEEE
RMB’000
AR¥ T
Issued: BT :
As at 1 January 2025 and R2025F1 18 &
30 June 2025 (unaudited) 20256 A30H
(REEFERT) 120,701,800 159
As at 1 January 2024 R2024F1 A 1H 125,200,400 165
Cancellation of share repurchased &+ #588 BIR 5 (772 ())
(note (i) (3,498,600) (5)
Cancellation of restricted share unit EUH =B &l A% 1D 28 iz 51 =
scheme (note 18(a)) (H1a£18(3)) (1,000,000) )
As at 30 June 2024 (unaudited) M2024%F 6 A30H
(CREEZEET) 120,701,800 159

ERMEEIZRERAT
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oA B B AR Y

17 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(CONTINUED)

54

(@)

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

Share capital of the Company (Continued)
(i) Cancellation of share repurchased

During the period from July to December in 2023,
the Company repurchased 9,706,600 of its own
ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange with
an aggregate consideration of HK$71,332,000
(equivalent to RMB65,061,000) paid. 3,498,600
repurchased shares of an aggregate amount of
HK$21,630,000 (equivalent to RMB19,839,000) were
cancelled upon repurchase and were deducted
from capital reserve during the six months ended

30 June 2025.

During the period from September to October in
2024, the Company repurchased 4,891,600 of its
own ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange
with an aggregate consideration of HK$48,017,000

(equivalent to RMB43,579,000) paid.

The remaining 11,099,600 repurchased shares were
not cancelled and remained as treasury Shares at

the end of the reporting period.

Interim Report 2025

17 RAER @i (&)
RATRA (&)

(@)

@

= 8 B8 O &% 12

R2023F7 A E12 A BifE -

RABE BRI FTALRKE
71,332,0007% T (& B A
R #65,061,0007T) #& @ &
9,706,600i% L AR - HEE
20256 A30H IE/N1A A -

# % %8 521,630,000 7T
(FE & W A R #19,839,000
JT) H93,498,6000% B [@ A% 1
EREBEKEHE YEBE
KNEEE R -

R2024%F9 A Z10A HifE -
PIN/NIS 7 R - A
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oA B IS AR Y

17 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Other reserve of the Group

17 BARf##E (&)
(b) AEEHAMREE

Capital Statutory
reserve reserve Total
B fEE EEREE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®TR AR¥Tx
At 31 December 2024 and A2024F12A318 R
1 January 2025 20251418 24,126 52,512 76,638
Transfer to statutory reserves TR T — 13,142 13,142
At 30 June 2025 (Unaudited) "2025F 6 H30H
(REEFES) 24,126 65,654 89,780
At 31 December 2023 and A2023F12A318 K
1 January 2024 2024F1H1H 47,865 46,418 94,283
Cancellation of share repurchased & #48& [@ A% D
(note 17(a)(1) (Bt 17(a)01) 19,669 = 19,669
Transfer to statutory reserves EERE AT RE = 1,999 1,999
Cancellation of restricted share unit EUE 5B i A 17 B iz
scheme 5131 1 = 1
At 30 June 2024 (Unaudited) A2024F6H30H
(REEET) 67,535 48,417 115,952
EHMEEERERAT —ToRFREHRS 55
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o 5 Bt 35 R B R

18 RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME AND
SHARE AWARD SCHEME

56

(@)

PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.

RSU Scheme

The Company adopted a restricted share unit scheme on
13 January 2022. On 18 January 2022, Mr. Sun, through a
series of transactions, indirectly transferred the entire
issued share capital of Robert Sun Holdings Limited,
which held 200 shares of the Company (the “Underlying
Shares”), to Kastle Limited (as the trustee), for the
execution of the RSU Scheme without consideration. The
Underlying Shares were subsequently subdivided into
1,000,000 shares of par value of USD0.0002 each after a
series of subdivision, representing approximately 1% of
total issued shares of the Company as at 31 December
2022.

According to RSU Scheme, each restricted share unit
("RSU") represents one Underlying Share, and represents
a conditional right granted to any selected person under
this scheme to obtain shares of the Company (i.e.
equity-settled scheme), less any tax, stamp duty and
other charges applicable, as determined by the Board in
its absolute discretion.

Pursuant to the RSU Scheme, the Underlying Shares were
within the Company’s control until the shares are vested
unconditionally to the participants and hence were
considered as treasury shares of the Company in
substance. On 31 March 2023, the Company had granted
all RSUs to Mr. Yang Hong, one of the directors of the
Company. The fair value of each RSU HK$10.6 was
estimated by taking reference to the market price of the
Company’s shares on grant date under market approach.
The market price is less the present value of expected
dividends as the grantee has no right to them. The RSU
Scheme are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 10%
of the Underlying Share respectively on each anniversary
dates of the grant date (i.e. 31 March of each year from
2023 to 2033) provided that the grantee has completed
his services up to each of vesting schedule.

The total of 1,000,000 shares are cancelled during the six
months ended 30 June 2024.
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Notes to the Interim Financial Information

Fh HA B 7S & R R R
18 RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME AND 18 32 PRl A 40 B {u ot 81 R A 47 8¢
SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BEt &l (&)
(b) Share award scheme (b) R EEETE
Pursuant to a resolution passed on 26 June 2023, a BIER2023F 6 A26 8 B B #y R

share award scheme was adopted (the “2023 Scheme”).

The Company operates the 2023 Scheme for the
purposes of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants. The 2023 Scheme became effective on
26 June 2023 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Under the 2023 Scheme, the Board are authorised,
at their absolute discretion, to grant an award to any
employees of the Group and any persons who have
contributed to the Group in the past and/or are in the
interests of the long-term growth of the Group. Pursuant
to the 2023 Scheme, each award gives the holder the
right to subscribe for ordinary share in the Company,
which constitutes as a equity-settle scheme.

On 26 June 2023, the Company has appointed a trustee
to assist with the administration for the scheme. As at
30 June 2025, the vesting condition has not yet declared
by the Board and no share awards were granted under
the 2023 Scheme. 6,208,000 of treasury Shares are held
by the trustee as at 30 June 2025.
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Notes to the Interim Financial Information

HER B IS B R
19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 ESRHEHMENRE
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
12025 F R 20244F
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETTT
Unaudited Audited
REETT S
Trade payables B 5 RN RIE 70,778 51,513
Other payables: Eh FE A FRIB
— Accrued staff costs — EETEIA 72,931 84,223
— Accrual expenses — EFAX 13,432 9,278
— Reimbursement and refund payables —— B84 F0UE MR K 267 3,335
— Other tax payables — HhERFIE 22,964 27,780
109,594 124,616
180,372 176,129
The trade and other payables are denominated in RMB and the B REMENRBAARESE B
carrying amounts approximate their fair values. BREEEAEATEES -
The aging analysis of the trade payables by invoice date is as B RENFIAEREZEABELNRRD
follows: MR :
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
12025 F R 2024F
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®¥ TR ARKETTT
Unaudited Audited
REEETT S
Up to 90 days =&90H 70,778 51,513

58  PLUS GROUP HOLDINGS INC. Interim Report 2025
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20 BORROWINGS

21

20

FARBRE
— S|RITER

Included in current liabilities
— Bank borrowings

Fh HA B 7S & R R R
B

As at As at
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
R2025F HN2024 4
6H30H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBET T
Unaudited Audited
REBET AT
77,948 64,148

Notes:

(@  The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings, which are all due
within one vyear, approximate their fair values. The bank
borrowings are denominated in RMB and the weighted average
interest rates were 2.96% per annum as at 30 June 2025
(31 December 2024: 3.37%).

(b) (i) As at June 2025, the borrowings of RMB10,000,000 (31

December 2024: RMB5,000,000) were guaranteed by

corporate guarantee provided by a subsidiary of the

Company and a government guarantee specially set for

small and medium-sized enterprises.

(ii) The borrowings of approximately RMB67,948,000 (31
December 2024: RMB59,148,000) were solely guaranteed
by corporate guarantee provided by a subsidiary of the
Company as at 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024.

()  The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing for the six months ended 30 June 2025 and 2024.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2025, a loan from Wuhan Youcheng Information
Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Wuhan Youcheng”), a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, with principal amount of
RMB10,000,000 (31 December 2024. RMB26,000,000), is non-
trade nature, unsecured, interest-bearing at rate of 3.45% and
repayable on demand.

The remaining amount due to a non-controlling shareholder is
non-trade nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

* For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Interim Financial Information

HER B IS B R

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 22 BHMARS
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these condensed BRI RRAR & B IS Rk E A 30 0 Fr i 55
consolidated financial statements, the Group has following EFoN AEBHEBATELNTRS !
transactions with related parties:
Key management compensation FTEEEASFMH
The directors consider the key management personnel to be EEZRBIEEBRAERARRESE
the members of the Board of Directors of the Company who KB FEEERE - BEREHAE
have responsibilities for planning, directing and controlling the BHEES o

activities of the Group.

Six months ended 30 June

BZ6H30B1EA@EA
2025 2024
2025 20244
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®E TR ARET T
Unaudited Unaudited
RGBS RACEE 5T
Key management compensation FEEEABFHB
— Salaries and other employee — H R EMmEERETF
benefits 1,704 1,175
— Discretionary bonuses — MBI — 4,544
— Pension costs — BIRE A 98 145

1,802 5,864
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